


Vision
To position the authority as a leading a distinguished and eff ective 
Liquor Regulator in the country.

Mission
To ensure strict regulation and control of the retail sale and micro- 
manufacture of liquor in the province of KZN through eff ective policies, 
strategies and partnerships.

Values
• Accountability • Integrity
• Responsiveness • Transparency
• Fairness • Effi  ciency
• Progressiveness

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority (KZNLA), was established in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Liquor 
Licensing Act, 2010 (Act no. 06 of 2010) as amended. The KZNLA has an organisational presence in each 
of the Municipal Districts in the province. The District Offi  ces are staff ed by a small team comprising 
of a District Social Responsibility Practitioner, an inspector/s and a Local Committee Secretary. 
The District Offi  ces have enabled the organization to eff ectively perform its mandate and ensure ease 
of access to its stakeholders, and critically the public.
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“Responsible trading and 
drinking will greatly reduce 
the harm of alcohol abuse. 
The Social Responsibility Unit 
of the Liquor Authority plays 
a critical role in providing 
liquor education to traders 
and consumers alike to ensure 
respect for the law.”
We are pleased to report that the Liquor Authority  whose  mandate is 
to control and regulate the retail sale and micro manufacture of liquor 
in the province continues to make great advances in ensuring that  it 
remains receptive and responsive to the needs of its stakeholders. The 
Authority continues to establish collaborative relationships between the 
liquor industries. Other government departments and the communities 
to ensure eff ective regulation and control of alcohol in the province.

The Annual Report of the Liquor Authority fairly presents the state of  
aff airs of this public entity, its fi nancial position and its performance  
against predetermined objectives as at the end of the fi nancial year. 
The Management Team strove to ensure compliance with the KwaZulu-
Natal Liquor Licensing Act. The Public Finance Management Act, and 
Treasury Regulations.

For the 2015/2016 fi nancial the Authority recorded 8038 licensed  
premises  in the province. The large majority of them some 2923 are 
licensed in the eThekwini Metro. The Board ensured that those licenses 
that were granted for the year under review were in the public interest. 
For the previous year 7824 were licensed. This fi gure has now increased 
by a further 214 new entrants to the industry. Whilst I welcome the new 
entrants I must caution that compliance with the liquor law remains 
our number one priority.

It is common cause that liquor abuse in our country remains 
exceptionally high and therefore we in government continue to 
involve all stakeholders to partner with us as we try to stem the tide  
against liquor abuse in our province and in our country. Responsible 
trading and drinking will greatly reduce the harm of alcohol abuse. 
The Social Responsibility Unit of the Liquor Authority plays a critical 
role in providing liquor education to traders and consumers alike to 
ensure respect for the law.

We wish to take this opportunity to thank our Governance structure. the  
Board of Directors of the Liquor Authority, the CEO and the  Management 
team in ensuring that the Authority delivers on its strategic objectives 
and outcomes as identifi ed and agreed on.
 
Credit must also go to the staff  of the Entity for their diligence in 
ensuring that the Entity delivers on its legislative mandate.

Mr. Sihle Zikalala, MPL
MEC: Kwazulu-Natal Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Aff airs

MEC’s
Foreword

Mr. Sihle Zikalala, MPL
MEC: Kwazulu-Natal Economic Development, 

Tourism and Environmental Aff airs

“Responsible trading and 
drinking will greatly reduce

Mr. Sihle Zikalala, MPL
MEC: Kwazulu-Natal Econom

Tourism and Environmental Aff 
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Acronyms
AG AUDITOR - GENERAL

CEO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CFO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

EDTEA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TOURISM AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS

DRP DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN

HR HUMAN RESOURCES

IT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

KZNLA KWAZULU-NATAL LIQUOR AUTHORITY

LLS LIQUOR LICENSING SYSTEM

MEC MEMBER OF EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

MTEF MEDIUM TERM EXPENDITURE

NGO NON GOVERNMENT ORGANISATION

SALGA SOUTH AFRICAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION



KZN LIQUOR AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2015  2016 5



General
Information

Part A:

“THAT LAST ONE 
FOR THE ROAD, 
MAY BE YOUR LAST 
ONE ON EARTH”
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REGISTERED OFFICE : 1st Floor, The Marine Building 

22 Dorothy Nyembe Street (Gardner Street), 

Durban, 4000, P.O Box 2853

AUDITORS : External – Auditor - General 

 Internal – KZN Provincial Treasury 

 – Internal Audit Unit

BANKERS : ABSA Bank, KZN Provincial Banking Branch

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE
The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority is established in terms of the 

KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Licensing Act No. 06 of 2010 to:

» Consider, grant or reject liquor licence applications in the Province;

» Issue licences in terms of Chapter 6 of this Act;

» Enhance accessibility of liquor licences in the Province;

» Ensure a uniform, fair, equitable and transparent process in the 

issuing of liquor licences;

» Work with the responsible Member of the Executive Council, the 

Department, municipalities and the liquor industry in the Province 

in order to implement and promote national and provincial 

liquor policies and norms and standards; and

» To implement and promote initiatives which address the objects 

of the Act as provided for in Section 2(b) and (d) of the KZN 

Liquor Licensing Act. No. 06 of 2010 as amended.

STATUTORY MANDATE OF 
THE LIQUOR AUTHORITY
The foremost aim of the KZN Liquor Authority is to ensure that 

the objectives of the KZN Liquor Licensing Act are accomplished. 

The KZN Liquor Licensing Act lists the following as the objectives:

» To provide for the regulation of the micro-manufacturing and 

retail sale of liquor;

» To reduce the socio-economic and other costs of alcohol abuse;

» To provide for public participation in the consideration of 

applicants for registration;

» To promote the development of a responsible and sustainable 

retail and micro-manufacturing liquor industry in a manner 

that facilitates:

- The entry of new participants into the industry

- Diversity of ownership in the industry

- An ethos of social responsibility in the industry

STAKEHOLDER ANALYSIS
The KZN Liquor Authority identifi ed a number of key stakeholders, 

and has furthermore, through its District Offi  ces, establish practical 

relationships with these critical stakeholders, for the purpose of 

ensuring the key objectives of the organisation are achieved. The 

organisation acknowledges that for the success and sustainability 

of the Sector, collaborative relationship with the liquor industry 

and the community are required. The Authority understands that 

public, private and community partnerships are critical for the 

organisation to remain relevant and eff ective.

KEY STAKEHOLDERS INCLUDE:

» Government departments (National, provincial and local); and 

Government structures such as SALGA:  

» NGO’s, Liquor traders and liquor trader associations

» Liquor manufacturers and Distributors

» Law enforcement agencies

» Justice Cluster and other Cabinet Clusters

» Media

» Existing community structures

» National and Provincial Liquor Authorities

» Suppliers/service providers

STRATEGIC GOALS OF THE 
LIQUOR AUTHORITY
The following key strategic goals are required to give eff ect to 

the statutory mandate and strategic objectives of the KZN Liquor 

Authority. These strategic goals and objectives serve over the 

Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) period to enable 

KZNLA to achieve on its mandate.

STRATEGIC GOALS
» To provide for an eff ective regulatory environment 

» To implement eff ective corporate governance processes in the 

Liquor Authority

» To develop and implement an eff ective communications strategy 

for the organisation 

» To attract, nurture and retain skills within the organisation 

» To implement sound fi nancial management and eff ective and 

reliable information management systems

» To implement an eff ective liquor licensing process

» To ensure compliance with the Liquor licensing legislation

» To advocate for an informed, effi  cient and seamless liquor 

regulatory environment
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“The Entity is now well 
positioned to move forward 
after it has confronted an 
array of challenges both from 
an operational perspective as 
well as from a socio-economic 
perspective to ensure the 
smooth implementation of 
the Liquor Act.”
The year under review has undeniably been a signifi cant one for the 
Liquor Authority. The Entity is now well positioned to move forward 
after it has confronted an array of challenges both from an operational 
perspective as well as from a socio-economic perspective to ensure 
the smooth implementation of the Liquor Act. The Entity has thus far 
managed very-well in the following areas which are key to its mandate:

» Considering, granting or rejecting liquor applications in the province 

» Issue licenses in terms of Chapter 6 of the Act; 

» Enhance accessibility of liquor licenses in the province 

» Ensure a uniform, fair, equitable and transparent process in the 
issuing of liquor licenses; 

» Implement and promote initiatives which addresses the objects of 
the Act as provided for in Section 2(b) and (d) of the act.

For the period under review the Board took responsibility in ensuring 
that the strategic plan of the Entity was being implemented. In addition 
it sought to ensure the following:

» Proper monitoring of operational performance and management,

» Determination of policy and processes to ensure the integrity of 
the KZN Liquor Authority’s risk management and internal controls

» Communication policy, and director selection, orientation 
and evaluation. 

The Board took absolute responsibility for the performance of the 
Public Entity and accounted to the shareholder, viz. Department of 
Economic Development Tourism and Environmental Aff airs for such 
performance. The MEC, the Honourable Mr Sihle Zikalala, MPL, must 
be credited for always being receptive and responsive to the Board.  
The MEC continued to provide good guidance and counsel to the 
Board for which we are indeed very grateful.

The Board retained full and eff ective control over the Public Entity 
and monitored management closely in implementing Board plans, 
policies and strategies. 

As board members we ensured that we had unrestricted access to 
accurate, relevant and timely information of the Liquor Authority and 
always acted on a fully informed basis, in good faith, with diligence, 
skill and care and in the best interest of the Public Entity, whilst taking 
account of the interests of the shareholder and other stakeholders, 
including employees, the liquor industry and local communities. I am 
pleased to present the Annual Report of the Entity, which encompasses 
the performance for the 2015/2016 fi nancial year. The Annual Financial 
Statements are compiled according to GRAP standards, outlines the 
fi nancial position and fi nancial performance of the Entity in detail for 
the fi nancial year.  

I wish to express my sincere appreciation to my fellow Board members 
who have continued to steer the Liquor Authority in a direction 
and manner befi tting of a role model Regulator. Your guidance and 
support during the year has been invaluable and your commitment 
to the organisation and to its vision and mission is greatly appreciated. 
The Board’s gratitude goes to the MEC, executive management and 
staff  for upholding the values and spirit of the Entity in all their dealings 
with the Liquor Authority’s stakeholders, of which there are many.

ADV. B.J. Buthelezi
Board Chairperson

Chairperson’s
Statement

ADV. B.J. Buthelezi
Board Chairperson

“The Entity is now well 
positioned to move forward

ADV. B.J. Buthelezi
Board Chairperson
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Part A: General Information ...continued

ADV. B.J. BUTHELEZI
CHAIRPERSON

MRS. S. PILLAY
MEMBER

MR. E.M. MASHILE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
EX-OFFICIO MEMBER

MR. B.B. MBANJWA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
EX-OFFICIO MEMBER

PROF. G. NDABANDABA
MEMBER

MRS. C.N. KHUMALO
MEMBER

BRIGADIER A.R. HARRY
MEMBER

MRS. S. PILLAY
DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON



KZN LIQUOR AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2015  2016 11

NAME DESIGNATION APPOINTMENT DATE

Adv. B.J. Buthelezi Chairperson 01 May 2015

Adjudication committee chairperson 22 May 2015

Ms. S. Pillay Deputy Chairperson 01 February 2013

Adjudication committee member 22 May 2015

Ms. S. Pillay Board Member 01 February 2013

Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee April 2013

Adjudication Committee Alternative Member 22 May 2015

Brigadier A.R. Harry Board Member 01 February 2013

Mrs. C. N. Khumalo Board Member 01 May 2015

HR and Remuneration Committee Chairperson 22 May 2015

Prof. G. Ndabandaba Board Member 01 May 2015 

Social and Ethics Committee Chairperson May 2015 

Adjudication Committee Member 22 May 2015 

EXOFFICIO MEMBERS

MEMBER DESIGNATION

Mr. E.M. Mashile Chief Executive Offi  cer

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Chief Financial Offi  cer

Mr. Nhleko EDTEA representative 

MEMBER DESIGNATION DATE 
APPOINTED 

AREA OF 
EXPERTISE 

OTHER COMMITTEES MEETINGS ATTENDED

22/05/15 21/08/15 04/12/15 0/03/16 

Adv. B.J. Buthelezi CHAIRPERSON 01/05/2015 Legal Adjudication Committee 
Chairperson  

√ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay DEPUTY 
CHAIRPERSON 

01/02/2013 Legal Adjudication Committee √ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay MEMBER 01/02/2013 Social Services Audit and Risk Committee √ √ √ √

Brigadier A.R. Harry MEMBER 01/02/2013 SAPS Member n/a A √ A √

Prof. G. Ndabandaba MEMBER 01/05/2015 Liquor 
Industry 

Adjudication Committee A R R R

Mrs. C.N. Khumalo MEMBER n/a Additional 
Member  

HR and Remuneration/ 
Audit and Risk Committee

√ √ √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile EX-OFFICIO 
MEMBER

n/a Executive HR and Remuneration/ 
Audit and Risk Committee

√ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa EX-OFFICIO 
MEMBER

n/a Executive HR and Remuneration/ 
Audit and Risk Committee

√ √ √ √

Mr. Nhleko EX-OFFICIO 
MEMBER

n/a Shareholder 
Representative

n/a A A A A

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS 2015/16

√ = Attended A = Apology R = Resigned D = Deceased RR = Recused

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority Board of Directors comprised of the following members during the 2015/16 fi nancial year.
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Part A: General Information ...continued

MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

04/06/15 07/07/15 28/07/15 09/09/15 11/03/16 24/03/16

Adv. B. J. Buthelezi CHAIRPERSON √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay MEMBER A √ √ √ √ √

Brigadier A.R. harry MEMBER A √ A A √ √

Mrs. C.N. Khumalo MEMBER √ √ A √ √ √

Prof. G. Ndabandaba √ √ √ R R R

Mr. E.M. Mashile EX-OFFICIO MEMBER √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa EX-OFFICIO MEMBER √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. Nhleko EX-OFFICIO MEMBER A A A A A A

SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2015/16

√ = Attended A = Apology R = Resigned D = Deceased RR = Recused

MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

07/05/2016 12/08/2015 19/11/2015 25/02/2015

Ms. S. Pillay 
BOARD MEMBER

CHAIRPERSON √ N/A N/A N/A

Mrs. C. N. Khumalo 
BOARD MEMBER 

CHAIRPERSON N/A √ √ √

Mr. S. Gumede MEMBER A A √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile 
CEO

MEMBER √ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa 
CFO

MEMBER √ A A √

Ms. M.F. Madondo 
HR MANAGER

MEMBER √ √ ML √

HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

√ = Attended A = Apology R = Resigned N/A = Not Applicable                 ML = Maternity Leave 

MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

11/05/2015 SPECIAL 
MEETING 
20/05/2015

SPECIAL 
MEETING 
24/07/2015

06/08/15 20/11/2015 29/02/16

Ms. S. Pillay 
BOARD MEMBER

CHAIRPERSON √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. T. Zulu
External Representative

MEMBER √ √ A √ √ A

Ms. C. Coetzee 
External Representative

Member A A √ √ √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile 
CEO

MEMBER √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa CFO MEMBER √ √ √ √ √ √

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

√ = Attended A = Apology R = Resigned 
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MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

07 MAY 2015

Ms. S. Pillay
BOARD MEMBER

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON √

Ms. B. Shabalala 
EXEC. MANAGEMENT

MEMBER √

Ms. M.F. Madondo 
HR MANAGER

MEMBER √

Ms. Z. Mtongana
MANAGEMENT 

MEMBER A

Mr. V. Mkhabela
EMPLOYEE REP. 

MEMBER √

PENSION FUND 

√ = Attended A = Apology R = Resigned                 N/A = Not Applicable

MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

12/08/2015

Prof. Ndabandaba 
BOARD MEMBER

CHAIRPERSON √

Mr. E. Mashile MEMBER √

Mr. S. Manelli MEMBER √

Mr. B. Mbanjwa MEMBER A

Ms. M. Madondo MEMBER √

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE 

√ = Attended A = Apology R = Resigned                 N/A = Not Applicable
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EXECUTIVE 
MANAGEMENT 
TEAM

Part A: General Information ...continued

MR. E.M. MASHILE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MR. S. MANELLI
EXECUTIVE MANAGER:
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

MR. M. TSAUTSE
EXECUTIVE MANAGER: 
LIQUOR LICENCING 
AND ADMINISTRATION

MS. B. SHABALALA
EXECUTIVE MANAGER: 
COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

MR. B.B. MBANJWA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

MS. O. CINGO
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTANT

MS. L. SIBIYA
REGIONAL MANAGER: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

MR. S. NAIDOO 
MANAGER: COMMUNICATIONS 

MS. M. COLBORNE 
REGIONAL MANAGER: SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

MR. A. KUBHEKA
MANAGER: LICENCING AND ADMINISTRATION 

MS. Z. MTONGANA 
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTANT

MR.V. MZOBE
REGIONAL MANAGER: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

MS. M. MADONDO
MANAGER: HUMAN RESOURCES

MS. S. MNGOMA
OFFICE MANAGER AND BOARD SECRETARIAT

MS. Z. LUJABE
MANAGER: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

LEFT TO RIGHT
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“The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor 
Authority will continue to build 
and strengthen partnerships 
with the liquor industry, other 
government departments, 
organs of civil society in ensuring 
the proper regulation and 
control of liquor in the province. 
The improvement of our service 
delivery remains our priority for 
the new fi nancial year.”

The year under review was indeed challenging and exciting in many 

respects. We placed great emphasis on producing quality work and 

entrenching a work ethic culture throughout the organisation. Under the 

good guidance and counsel of our Governance Board, the Management 

team and staff  worked smartly in striving for a clean audit for the entity. 

In the course of the year we reviewed our liquor license management 

system (LMS) and established a need to replace the current LMS to 

ensure enhanced operational effi  ciencies in the licensing process. Work 

is underway to procure a service provider to develop a new LMS in 

the new fi nancial year. Whilst we have made great progress there are 

still areas for improving operational effi  ciencies in the liquor license 

process. Among other initiatives we will be beefi ng up operational 

effi  ciencies in the Call Centre to improve our stakeholder relationship. 

We placed great emphasis on awareness and education campaigns, 

prioritizing vulnerable sections of our communities which include 

women and children. A variety of awareness sessions were conducted 

to promote responsible drinking and responsible trading practices. 

Compliance and Enforcement of the liquor law played an equally 

important and vital role to ensure that liquor traders comply with 

the law. Compliance with liquor regulation is the basis for ensuring 

a responsible, sustainable liquor trade, and contributes to reducing 

socio-economic and other costs associated with alcohol. All parties 

in the liquor value chain are encouraged to comply. These include 

distributors and retailers, amongst others. During the year under review 

the Liquor Authority worked in concert and in partnership with law 

enforcement and other government departments and conducted 

weekly blitz’s to liquor outlets. These blitzes are proving eff ective in 

ensuring regulatory compliance.

As at the end of the fi nancial year ending 31 March 2016 there are 

8038 licensed premises in the Province. The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor 

Authority will continue to build and strengthen partnerships with 

the liquor industry, other government departments, organs of civil 

society in ensuring the proper regulation and control of liquor in the 

province. The improvement of our service delivery remains our priority 

for the new fi nancial year.

I am pleased to report that for the fi rst since the inception of the 

Liquor Authority in August 2012. We received a clean audit by the 

Auditor General. This would not be possible without the support of 

the MEC, the Honourable Sihle Zikalala MPL, the Board of Directors, 

the Management and staff  for their unwavering co-operation and 

support during the period under review. The Liquor Authority Team 

is well poised to tackle the challenges in the year ahead. We have a 

great team and together with our stakeholders we will continue to 

serve the province and the country with great pride and diligence.

Mr. E.M. Mashile 

Chief Executive Offi  cer

Chief Executive 
Offi  cer’s Report

Mr. E.M. Mashile 
Chief Executive Offi  cer

“The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor 
Authority will continue to build

Mr. E.M. Mashile 
Chief Executive Offi  cer
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“All Youth 
can say NO 
to alcohol”
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Performance 
Information
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INTRODUCTION 
The KZN Liquor Authority had determined Performance Indicators and Targets for implementation during the 2015/16 fi nancial.  

The process of determining the performance indicators was derived from the strategic guidance provided by the Board of directors who 

then approved the APP for 2015/16.  

The entity, reports below, on annual performance, in line with the Annual Performance Plan for 2015/16 as approved. 

ORGANISATIONAL BUSINESS UNITS

OFFICE OF THE CEO 
AND BOARD

CORPORATE 
SERVICES

COMPLIANCE AND 
ENFORCEMENT

LICENSING AND 
ADMINISTRATION

SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

PROGRAMME 1: OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» To provide strategic direction and leadership to the organisation and the industry 

» To ensure compliance with relevant legislations, prescripts, corporate governance and fi nancial reporting standards

» To oversee risk matters within the organisations 
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Performance Information ...continued

PROGRAMME NAME : OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON DEVIATION 

Number of performance reports submitted 
and reporting sessions held to monitor 
organisational performance.

16 16 None Output achieved as planned.

5 4 1 Postponement of the Board Strategic planning 
session which presented delays in fi nalising 
strategic Objectives for the organisation.

Number of board and board committee meetings 
held to ensure compliance with all legislations 
and corporate governance requirements.

- Number of Board meetings held to provide 
strategic direction to the organisation.

- Number of Board committee meetings 
held to assist the Board to discharge its 
fi duciary duties.

4

16

10

45

6

29

Board held several special meetings to fi nalise 
strategic issues of the organisation. 

The Board established a committee to 
adjudicate liquor license applications, which 
convenes meetings once a week.

Organisational risk register developed and 
number of sessions coordinated to monitor 
implementation of controls.

1 Risk 
Register

1 Risk 
Register 

None Risk Register developed and implementation 
monitored through Management meetings, 
the Audit and Risk Board Committee meetings 
and the Board meetings.

12 
Management 
Meetings

12 
Management 
meetings 
held 

None Presentation of status update on the 
implementation of controls within the Risk 
Register remained a standing item on the 
EXCOMM meeting agenda. 

PROGRAMME NAME : OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD 

SUBPROGRAMME: COMMUNICATIONS 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Number Integrated Communications Strategies; Media and 
Public Relations Plans developed.

4 4 None None

Number of internal communication plan activities implemented in 
line with the integrated communications and public relations strategy.

5 5 None None

Number of external communications plan activities implemented in 
line with the integrated communications strategies.

5 5 None None

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» Develop and implement an eff ective communications strategy for the organisation 

PROGRAMME NAME : OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD

SUBPROGRAMME: HUMAN RESOURCES

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED ACTIVITIES MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Number of Human Resources policies Developed 
and Implemented.

10 10 Policies developed and 
work shopped with staff 

None None

Number of Human Resources reports developed and 
submitted in compliance with statutory requirements.

1 Workplace Skills Plan 
1 Employment Equity Report

2 None None

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» To provide for eff ective and effi  cient human and fi nancial resources support in the Liquor Authority 

PROGRAMME 1: OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD ...continued
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PROGRAMME NAME : COPORATE SERVICES 

SUBPROGRAMME: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, ASSETS AND BUDGET

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED ACTIVITIES MILESTONES ACHIEVED DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Number of Finance policies reviewed
and implemented.

19 19 Policies reviewed None None

Number of reports developed and submitted in 
compliance with statutory requirements.

4 Tax Returns
4 Cash fl ow reports
1 Budget Template
1 AFS Template
1 Close out Report

4 Cashfl ow reports              
4 Tax Returns             
1 Close out report            
2 AFS templates submitted
4 Budget reports submitted

None None

SUBPROGRAMME: SCM

Procurement plan Developed 
and Implementation Monitored.

- Procurement Plan 1 Approved procurement 
plan implemented

None None

SUBPROGRAMME: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Number of Information Technology policies 
reviewed and implemented.

14 14 Policies implemented 
and consultation held for 
review of the policies

None None

IT Strategy and IT Governance Framework 
reviewed and implemented.

0 5 IT Steering committee 
meetings held

None None

PROGRAMME 2: CORPORATE SERVICES BUSINESS UNIT

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» To provide for eff ective and effi  cient human and fi nancial resources support in the Liquor Authority

» To implement an information technology strategy that supports the requirements of the Liquor Authority 

PROGRAMME NAME: LICENSING AND ADMINISTRATION

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED ACTIVITIES MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Number of all new applications received which fully 
comply with the requirements of the Act are processed, 
considered and fi nalised by the Liquor Authority within 
the stipulated time frames by the Act.

All new applications which are 
compliant are considered and 
fi nalised within 112 days.

2796 None None

Number of training sessions held in respect of Local 
members on the processes and the Act.

Training sessions to be held in 
respect to Local members on the 
processes and the ACT.

2 None None

PROGRAMME 3: LICENSING AND ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS UNIT

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» Develop and implement an eff ective, effi  cient and measurable license application process.

» Design and implement a fair and transparent set of evaluation criteria to be used by Local Committees and the Adjudicating Committee

» Develop and implement a comprehensive registry and database that manages and controls information necessary to meet the 

requirements of the Act
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Performance Information ...continued

PROGRAMME NAME: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED ACTIVITIES MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION FROM 
PLANNED TARGET 

COMMENT ON DEVIATION 

Number of inspection reports 
done and submitted within 
14 days in compliance with the Act.

All requested inspection 
reports are done and 
submitted within 14 days.

9316 None None

Number of interventions to ensure 
compliance by license holders and 
identifying illegal traders.  

- Inspection blitz conducted

- Routine inspections conducted

44

8500

105 Inspection 
Blitz conducted

11664 Routine 
Inspections 
conducted 

61

3164

Additional operations requested by 
stakeholders e.g. SAPS and Municipalities. 

Most of the routine inspections are conducted 
to cover for the shortfall in the 1st quarter. 
None 

Number of compliance forum 
meetings facilitated to detect and 
deal with non-compliance.

22 Compliance forum 
meetings facilitated.

4 Meetings facilitated 
with industry players.

22

4

None

None

None

None

PROGRAMME 4: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BUSINESS UNIT
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» Develop and implement a responsive compliance system when dealing with applications
» Implement an eff ective process to detect and deal with identifi ed cases of non-compliance by license holders and illegal operators
» Implement an eff ective and effi  cient time bound system to deal with complaints and general compliance monitoring

DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY TOTAL

Amajuba District Municipality 367
Ethekwini Metropolitan Municipality 2923
Ilembe District Municipality 457
Harry Gwala District Municipality 292
Ugu District Municipality 835
Umgungundlovu District Municipality 947
Umkhanyakude District Municipality 387
Umzinyathi District Municipality 276
Uthukela District Municipality 442
Uthungulu District Municipality 713
Zululand District Municipality 399
Grand Total 8038

COMPARISON OF LICENSES ISSUED PER DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY FOR TRADING YEAR 2015 AND 2016
GRAPHICAL SPREAD OF LICENSES: 2015/2016
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PROGRAMME NAME: SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR

PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION FROM 
PLANNED TARGET 

COMMENT ON DEVIATION 

Number of Reports collated 
and submitted on identifi ed 
illegal outlets.

4 2 2 No contact details for further intervention to be made. 
Accessibility to the illegal traders where only location is 
provided. Data is received months after the illegal was 
identifi ed thus making the information outdated.

Number of Social Responsibility 
Programme Guides Developed.

01 01 None None 

Number of Social 
Responsibility Programmes 
confi rmed and evaluated.

820 14 806 This target was based on 10% of overall projected 
number of licenses for the province as at 31 March 2015
 - it was established that all licenses approved prior to the 
Act’s came into full operation did not have SR programme 
motivations - Therefore only section 41’s; 74’s 75’s approved 
from February 2014 will be evaluated for the purposes of 
performance indicated - this therefore means the unit will 
underperform on this target.

Number of detailed analysis 
reports on the constitution of 
the liquor industry.

5 0 5 Availability of plausible data with relevant categories of 
information from the system 2. Insuffi  cient manpower 
to physically extract information from physical fi les 3. 
Availability of physical fi les.

Number of strategic 
partnerships identifi ed, 
formalised and Memorandums 
of Understanding sealed.

3 7 4 The SR Unit was requested to initially identify 3 
strategic partners, however this was reviewed 
during the course of the year to include all relevant 
stakeholders identifi ed. The target was thus exceeded.

Number of research reports on 
areas of concern produced.

5 0 5 An opportunity to share the project with KZNEDTEA 
has arisen. KZNDEDTEA has commissioned research 
into the analysis of the constitution of the liquor 
industry and also addresses the socio-economic areas 
of concern as identifi ed by the Board. KZNLA has 
formed part of the joint forum and briefi ng with the 
service provider.

Number of teaching aids 
developed for diff erent 
categories of identifi ed 
groups aff ected by impacts 
of alcohol abuse.

6 6 0 None 

Number of prospective 
trader education 
workshops conducted.

24 89 65 Requests for assistance by walk-in clients and other 
stakeholders required more workshops to be done and 
hence dedicated schedules for District potential trader 
workshops has been developed and posted on the 
website. This has led to the target being exceeded.

Number of current 
trader education 
workshops conducted.

24 115 91 Pro-active workshops focusing on renewals and non-
compliance trends were required to assist traders and 
avert late renewals as experienced in the past resulted 
in the target being exceeded.

Number of responsible 
consumption awareness 
campaigns conducted.

4 3 1 The proposed Provincial Liquor Summit was cancelled.

PROGRAMME 5: SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY BUSINESS UNIT
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
» Establish / Maintain an integrated and coordinated social responsibility programme in respect of alcohol consumption 
» Implement an eff ective process to educate the community, potential and current traders regarding the economic opportunities 

available in the liquor industry and the related obligations 
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Management
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PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE REWARDS PERSONNEL 
EXPENDITURE

% OF PERFORMANCE 
REWARDS TO TOTAL 
PERSONNEL COSTS

TOP MANAGEMENT 0 0 0

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 0 0 0

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFIED 0 0 0

SKILLED TECHNICAL 0 0 0

SEMI SKILLED 0 0 0

UNSKILLED 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0

HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

PERFORMANCE REWARDS
The KZNLA has a Performance Management Policy which has been approved for implementation. The organisation also had no budget 

available to cater for performance bonuses thus the entity only implemented the pay progression.

PROGRAMME 2015/2016 NO OF 
EMPLOYEES

2015/2016 
APPROVED POSTS

2015/2016 NO OF 
EMPLOYEES

2015/2016 
VACANCIES

% OF VACANCY 
RATE

CEO 3 3 3 0 0%

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 15 16 15 1 6.25%

LICENSING 31 34 31 3 8.82%

COMPLIANCE 29 29 29 0 0

CORPORATE SERVICES 18 18 18 0 0

COMMUNICATION 1 1 1 0 0

HUMAN RESOURCES 3 3 3 0 0

TOTAL 100 104 100 4 15.07%

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES 2015/16

TRAINING COSTS
The entity has implemented diff erent training initiatives as per the approved Training Plan. A skills development committee was established 

to ensure eff ective implementation of the Training Plan. A budget of R500 000.00 was approved and allocated for the Implementation 

of training plan.  

A budget of R100 000.00 was approved for the purpose of bursaries.  The skills development committee also played an oversight role in 

ensuring that fairness and transparency was achieved in the awarding of bursaries to the applicants. A total of 22 employees currently 

have bursaries through the entity’s Bursary program.

We have few frozen posts on the above table, they are as follows:

1 SR Manager

1 Legal Services Manager

1 Driver and

1 Help Desk offi  cers
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Performance Information ...continued

MALE FEMALE TOTAL

EMPLOYEE CATEGORY A C I W A C I W

TOP MANAGEMENT 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFIED 2 0 1 0 6 1 0 0 10

SKILLED TECHNICAL 22 0 2 0 21 1 2 1 49

SEMI SKILLED 12 1 0 0 16 0 1 0 30

UNSKILLED 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6

TOTAL PERMANENT 41 1 3 0 49 2 3 1 100

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES MALE FEMALE

CURRENT CURRENT 

Top Management 0 0

Senior Management 0 0

Professional Qualifi ed 0 0

Skilled Technical 0 0

Semi-Skilled 0 0

Unskilled 1 0

Total 1 0

ORGANISATION DISABILITY STATISTIC

PROGRAMME 2015/2016 NO OF 
EMPLOYEES

2015/2016 NO OF 
APPROVED POSTS

2015/2016 NO OF 
VACANCIES

PERCENTAGE OF 
VACANCIES

Top Management 1 1 0 0%

Senior Management 4 4 0 0%

Professional Qualifi ed 10 12 2 16.66%

Skilled Technical 49 49 0 0%

Semi-Skilled 30 32 2 6.25%

Unskilled 6 6 0 0%

Total 100 104 4 22.91%

The current status of the organisation’s disability percentage is 1%. The organisation is required to be at 2%.  

RETIREMENT

The organisation had no retirements in 2015/2016. 

The Organisation had all high level vacancies fi lled during the initial stages of establishing the organisation. The organisation thus had 1 

vacant high level position which was owed to the appointment of Executive Manager Licensing and Admin to the position of the CEO.   
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RESIGNATIONS

There were no resignations for fi nancial year reported on. 

BOARDING

The KZN Liquor Authority had no medical boarding in 2015/16.

EXPIRY OF CONTRACT

The KZN Liquor Authority had appointed the following employees 

on temporary basis, and the contracts expired as detailed below:

2015/2016 KZNLA INTERNSHIP AND TEMPS SPREADSHEET 

21 Employees were employed on a temporary basis, for the purpose 

of implementing various projects and also assist in providing the 

required human resources in areas where these were required. 

Temporary appointments also includes interns.

INTERNSHIP

KZN Liquor Authority appointed 11 Interns during this fi nancial year.

TEMPS

KZN Liquor Authority appointed 10 during this fi nancial year. 

PERMANENT APPOINTMENT

KZN Liquor Authority had 1 permanent appointment during this 

fi nancial year (EM: Licensing and Administration).

DISMISSAL

The organisation had no Disciplinary Action in 2015/16 fi nancial 

year. No dismissals were made in the year under review. 

CODE OF CONDUCT

During the year under review, Disciplinary Policy was reviewed 

and approved by the Board. The Disciplinary Policy stipulates 

the Code of Conduct for the Entity which also serves as a guide 

and makes provision for progressive disciplinary actions in each 

category of off ence.

EXIT TYPE NUMBER % OF TOTAL STAFF LEAVING

Death 0  0

Dismissal-Operational 0  0

Dismissal-Misconduct 0  0

Resignation 0  0

Expiry of Contract 2  0

Discharge due to ill health 0  0

Retirement 0  0

Other N/A  N/A

Total 2 2 

TYPE OF 
EMPLOYMENT

NO. OF 
EMPLOYEES

NAME OF 
EMPLOYEE

CONTRACT 
EXPIRY DATE

CONTRACT 10 SP MBATHA
NP BUTHELEZI
PZ MABASO
JH BELL
SL NGUBANE
L KHESWA
NH NDUKU
NM NXUMALO
MS MSOMI
BS MKHWANAZI

31.01.2016
31.01.2016
31.03.2016
31.03.2016
31.03.2016
31.03.2016
18.07.2016
18.07.2016
18.07.2016
18.07.2016

INTERNSHIP 11 V DIMBA
SH MASIMULA
N MAKHOHLISA
SV HLONGWANE
KT MAPHUMULO
N ZACA
SP MBATHA
NS MTUNGWA
K GCABA
T BOB 
PJ NGUBO

31.12.2015
09.02.2016
06.07.2016
06.07.2016
06.07.2016
06.07.2016
12.07.2016
10.08.2016
17.08.2016
13.11.2015
28.09.2016
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The KZNLA Board has absolute responsibility for the performance 

of the Public Entity and is fully accountable to the shareholder 

(Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 

Aff airs – EDTEA) for such performance. The Board Charter sets out 

the responsibilities of Board Members and confi rms the Board’s 

responsibility for the adoption of strategic plans, monitoring of 

operational performance and management, determination of policy 

and processes to ensure the integrity of the KZN Liquor Authority’s 

Risk management and internal controls, communication policy, 

and director selection, orientation and evaluation. 

The Board provides strategic direction to the organisation and is 

further responsible for the development of a fraud prevention Policy, 

as well as other governance structures, which include management 

of processes to minimize confl ict of interest, implementation of 

code of conduct as well as safety, health and other related issues 

facing the entity.  

Management is responsible and accounts to the board for 

developing, implementing and monitoring the processes as outlined 

and integrating them into operational activities of the entity.  

The Board established appropriate governance structures.  

Guided by the recommendation of the King Code on Corporate 

Governance and the circumstances of the Public Entity, the KZN 

Liquor Authority has established the following Board Committees, 

which are appointed by the chairperson of the Board:

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk committee is chaired by a member of the Board 

who is appointed by the Board chairperson and is comprised of 

majority of the members which are fi nancially literate. The Board 

has appointed two independent non-executive directors as a 

members of the Audit and Risk Committee. The Audit and Risk 

Committee has terms of reference which outline the composition, 

operations and guides the functioning of the committee. The Audit 

and Risk committee is responsible for improving management 

reporting by overseeing audit functions, internal controls and the 

fi nancial reporting process. The committee is further responsible for 

monitoring and Managing Risk issues as delegated by the Board. 

The committee’s primary responsibility is as follows:

» INTEGRATED REPORTING
The Committee oversees integrated reporting, and in particular 

the Committee must:

» have regard to all factors and risks that may impact on the 

integrity of the integrated report, including factors that may 

predispose management to present a misleading picture, 

signifi cant judgments and reporting decisions made, monitoring 

or enforcement actions by a regulatory body, any evidence 

that brings into question previously published information, 

forward-looking statements or information;

» review the annual fi nancial statements, interim reports, 

preliminary or provisional result announcements, summarised 

integrated information, any other intended release of price-

sensitive information and prospectuses, trading statements 

and similar documents;

» comment in the annual fi nancial statements on the fi nancial 

statements, the accounting practices and the eff ectiveness of 

the internal fi nancial controls;

» review the disclosure of sustainability issues in the integrated 

report to ensure that it is reliable and does not confl ict with 

the fi nancial information;

» recommend to the board the engagement of an external 

assurance provider on material sustainability issues;

» recommend the integrated report for approval by the board;

» consider the frequency for issuing interim results;

» consider whether the external auditor should perform assurance 

procedures on the interim results

» review the content of the summarized information for whether 

it provides a balanced view; and

» Engage the external auditors to provide assurance on the 

summarized fi nancial information.

» COMBINED ASSURANCE
The Committee will ensure that a combined assurance model 

is applied to provide a coordinated approach to all assurance 

activities, and in particular the Committee should:

» ensure that the combined assurance received is appropriate 

to address all the signifi cant risks facing the company; and

» monitor the relationship between the external assurance 

providers and the company

» FINANCE FUNCTION AND 
FINANCIAL DIRECTOR
The Committee reviews the expertise, resources and experience 

of the company’s fi nance function, and discloses the results 

of the review in the integrated report.  The Committee also 

considers and satisfi es itself of the suitability of the expertise 

and experience of the fi nancial director every year.

» INTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee is responsible for overseeing of internal audit, 

and in particular the Committee must:

» be responsible for the appointment, performance assessment 

and/or dismissal of the Chief Audit Executive;

» approve the internal audit plan; and

» ensure that the internal audit function is subject to an independent 

quality review, as and when the Committee determines 

it appropriate
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» RISK MANAGEMENT
The Committee is an integral component of the risk management 

process and specifi cally the Committee must oversee:

» fi nancial reporting risks;

» internal fi nancial controls;

» fraud risks as it relates to fi nancial reporting; and

» IT risks as it relates to fi nancial reporting.

» EXTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment 

of the external auditor and to oversee the external audit process 

and in this regard the Committee must:

» nominate the external auditor for appointment by the organisation;

» approve the terms of engagement and remuneration for the 

external audit engagement;

» monitor and report on the independence of the external 

auditor in the annual fi nancial statements;

» defi ne a policy for non-audit services provided by the 

external auditor;

» pre-approve the contracts for non-audit services to be rendered 

by the external auditor;

» ensure that there is a process for the audit committee to be 

informed of any Reportable Irregularities (as identifi ed in the 

Auditing Profession Act, 2005) identifi ed and reported by the 

external auditor;

» review the quality and eff ectiveness of the external audit 

process; and

» consider whether the audit fi rm and, where appropriate, the 

individual auditor that will be responsible for performing the 

functions of auditor are accredited as such on the JSE list of 

Auditors and their advisors as required by the JSE Limited 

Listings Requirements.

» AUTHORITY
The committee, in terms of its terms of reference as approved 

by the Board, has authority as follows:

» The Committee recommends to the Board with regard to its 

statutory duties and is accountable in this respect to the board.  

On all responsibilities delegated to it by the board outside of 

the statutory duties, the Committee makes recommendations 

for approval by the board.

» The Committee acts in accordance with its statutory duties and 

the delegated authority of the board as recorded in this terms 

of reference. It has the power to investigate any activity within 

the scope of its terms of reference.

» The Committee, in the fulfi lment of its duties, may call upon the 

chairman of the other board committees, any of the executive 

directors, employees, and board secretary or assurance providers 

to provide it with information subject to board approved process.

» The Committee has reasonable access to the company’s 

records, facilities, employees and any other resources necessary 

to discharge its duties and responsibilities subject to following 

board approved process.

» The Committee may form, and delegate authority to, 

subcommittees and may delegate authority to one or more 

designated members of the Committee.

» The Committee has the right to obtain independent outside 

professional advice to assist with the execution of its duties, 

at company’s cost, subject to a board approved process 

being followed.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee comprises of 

executive management and is chaired by a member of the Board 

appointed by the Board Chairperson. The Board has appointed an 

independent non-executive director, to serve as a member of the 

committee and provide the required expertise to assist the Board 

in achieving its mandate. The Human Resources and Remuneration 

Committee has terms of reference which outline the composition, 

operations and guides the functioning of the committee.  

The Committee’s primary function include reviewing and 

recommending to the Board the following:

» To review the performance objectives and determine and agree 

the appropriate levels of compensation, i.e. salary, bonus and 

incentive arrangements, 

» Human Resources Management and Development; and Staff  

Training and Development;

» Overall oversight responsibility on compensation matters of 

the organisation to review the design and management of 

organisation’s salary structures and incentive schemes and ensure 

proper authorization for awards made under such schemes

» To advise the Board on Human Resources and compensation 

matters;

» To recommend to the Board for approval, overall Human 

Resources Strategy

» To recommend to the Board  for approval, key human resources 

policies and procedures in line with the corporate strategy and 

other statutory requirements 

» To recommend to the Board for approval, overall compensation 

policy framework for the organisation and consider annually a report 

on the proposed salary increases for staff  across the organisation 

» To recommend to the Board for approval staff  conditions of 

service and other related matters 

» To recommend organisational structure to the Board  for approval 

» To recommend to the Board and monitor on behalf of the Board 

the corporate training plan 

Governance Report ...continued
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PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
The Board had constituted a Pension fund Committee, which deals 

with Pension fund matters within the organisation. The Pension Fund 

Committee is chaired by a Board Member and comprise of members 

of management as well as employee representatives. In the year of 

reporting, the Board resolved to dissolve the committee and incorporate 

its responsibilities within the HR and Remuneration Committee.

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE 
In the year of reporting, the Board established a Social and Ethics 

Committee, which is chaired by a member of the Board.  The 

committee developed Terms of reference which outline the 

composition, which outline the composition, operations and 

guides the functioning of the committee.  During the mid-year, 

the Board resolved to dissolve the committee and incorporate 

its responsibilities within the HR and Remuneration Committee.  

ADJUDICATION OF 
LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS
The Board referred to as the Liquor Authority, has the key 

responsibility to consider, grant or reject liquor license applications 

in the Province.  The Board established a committee comprising of 

3 Board members and chaired by the Board Chairperson, to carry 

out the function of adjudication. The adjudication committee 

reports to the Board on all matters fi nalised by the Committee. 

At the end of the year of reporting, the Board, in line with section 

21(1) (a) (i) of the KZN Liquor Licensing ACT no. 06 of 2010 amended 

in 2013, delegated to the CEO the following applications as 

contemplated on the same ACT, section 41,52,55, 69,74,75, 77 

and 89(12). The delegation was subject to review by the Board 

at any given point. The Board ensured that due diligence was 

applied in consideration of all applications lodged in terms of the 

applicable ACT.

BOARD MEMBER REMUNERATION
The MEC for Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 

Aff airs, determined the rate for remuneration of Board members. The 

fee structure outlines the full terms for payment of each member 

either for attendance at Board meetings, or participation in Board 

committees. The remuneration determinations by the MEC, further 

in the case of KZNLA, outline the rate for payment of members for 

adjudication processes.  Board members were paid in accordance 

with the determinations which clearly states that members are paid 

a retainer and attendance fee for Board meetings but are just paid 

a retainer for participation in Committee meetings. Members are 

paid an hourly rate for attendance at special meetings, if these are 

over and above the meetings prescribed within the retainer fee.  
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Report of the 
Audit and Risk 
Committee
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The Audit and Risk Committee is an operating committee of the 

Board of KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority, charged with oversight of 

fi nancial reporting and disclosure. The members of the Committee 

are drawn from and appointed by the company’s Board of directors, 

with the Chairperson remaining as the representative from the 

Board. The committee is charged with the responsibility to assist 

the Board in discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding of 

assets, eff ective management of liabilities and working capital, the 

operation of adequate systems and process of internal control and 

the preparation of fi nancial reports and Annual Financial Statements. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Audit Committee reports that it has performed its duties 

and complied with its responsibilities in accordance with the 

Public Finance Management Act and the Treasury Regulations. 

The Audit Committee also reports that it has approved Terms of 

Reference, which were adopted as the Audit and Risk Committee 

Charter which the committee regulated its aff airs in compliance 

with and discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.  

The committee held a Special meeting to consider and fi nalise 

the Annual Financial Statements for submission as per the 

PFMA requirements.

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE 
The Audit and Risk Committee, for the year under review consisted 

of the members listed hereunder and met four (4) times as per 

approved Terms of Reference.  

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Audit and Risk committee, considered the organisational Risk 

Register which was reviewed by management with the assistance 

of Provincial Treasury. The committee further assessed the risks 

as identifi ed and ensured that strategic Risks were eff ectively 

monitored. The committee monitors the implementation of controls 

as identifi ed, through reports tabled and interrogated during the 

Audit and Risk Committee meetings on a quarterly basis.  The 

Audit and Risk Committee constantly monitors the roll-out of risk 

management to ensure that this process reaches maturity with a 

reasonable time. The committee engaged on a process to develop 

the Risk Management Framework, and guided management in 

this process. 

INTERNAL AUDIT
Internal Audit was operated through an annual operational plan, 

between the KZNLA and KZN Treasury, which was approved by 

the Board. The audit coverage included mainly recurring audits 

and focused on areas considered to be key.  The results of the 

internal audits were presented to management for their response 

on fi ndings and to the Audit and Risk Committee for fi nal review 

then to the Board for noting. The Audit and risk Committee also 

thoroughly interrogated the Internal Audit Operational Plan and 

ensured that the internal audit are eff ectively executed to the 

benefi t of the organisation.  

The committee met with the external auditor to thoroughly engage 

on the Audit Strategy for the 2014/15 fi nancial year. The committee, 

committed to ensuring that strategies are in place to ensure that 

processes run eff ectively for ease of Audit implementation.  

EVALUATION OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMMITTEE:
» Considered all fi nancial information,

» Considered the appropriateness of policies as developed

» Met separately with management to discuss the draft fi nancial 

statements, external auditors to consider the fi ndings on the 

audit report and the audit unit at Treasury to plan for internal 

audit processes for the Liquor Authority

» Made appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding 

corrective actions to be taken as a consequence of audit fi ndings

» Reviewed and recommended for adoption by the Board fi nancial 

information that is publicly disclosed within the annual report

GOVERNANCE PROCESSES AND 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
The committee reports that it has adopted appropriate terms 

of reference which serve as the committee charter, which all 

the committee aff airs have been regulated in compliance with, 

and discharging of committee responsibilities has been done in 

accordance with what is contained therein.  

The Audit and Risk committee reviewed quarterly fi nancial reports 

and is satisfi ed that controls are in place to monitor spending 

patterns. The Quarterly reports were submitted to the Board for 

noting and to the Department of Economic Development and 

Tourism in line with the funding agreement.

MEMBER NUMBER OF 
MEETINGS ATTENDED 

Ms. S. Pillay - Chairperson 6

Mr. T. Zulu - Independent External Member 4

Ms. C. Coetzee 4

Mr. E. Mashile - Ex-Offi  cio Member 6

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa - Ex-Offi  cio Member 6
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Report of the Audit and Risk Committee ...continued

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
GOVERNANCE 
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it considered all IT 

policies as reviewed and made recommendation for consideration 

and approval by the Board. The committee considered the IT 

Governance Framework and advised the Board accordingly, in 

consideration of fi nancial implications associated. The Committee 

received reports from the IT Steering committee, and is thus 

assured that suffi  cient oversight is exercised on IT Governance 

matters within the organisation. The committee, upon realizing 

that the Liquor management system currently utilized by the 

entity, recommended that management working with the IT 

Steering committee members, draft Terms of Reference of the 

development of a new system. The committee is constantly 

updated and continuously provides required direction to 

management and advice to the Board in this regard.  

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-

General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements and is 

of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be 

accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor General.

MS. S. PILLAY

CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE  

MS. S. PILLAY
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Report of the Audit and Risk Committee ...continued

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL TO THE KWAZULUNATAL 
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON LIQUOR AUTHORITY

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. I have audited the fi nancial statements of the KwaZulu-Natal 

Liquor Authority set out on pages 39 to 61 which comprise 

the statement of fi nancial position as at 31 March 2016, the 

statement of fi nancial performance, statement of changes 

in net assets and the cash fl ow statement for the year then 

ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of signifi cant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and 

fair presentation of these fi nancial statements in accordance with 

the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 

of 1999) (PFMA) and for such internal control as the accounting 

authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

fi nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORGENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial 

statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 

accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. 

Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the fi nancial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 

presentation of the fi nancial statements in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

eff ectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

of the fi nancial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suffi  cient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

OPINION
6. In my opinion, the fi nancial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the fi nancial position of the KwaZulu-

Natal Liquor Authority as at 31 March 2016 and its fi nancial 

performance and cash fl ows for the year then ended, in 

accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements 

of the PFMA .

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modifi ed 

in respect of this matter.

RESTATEMENT OF 
CORRESPONDING FIGURES
8. As disclosed in note 19 to the fi nancial statements, the 

corresponding fi gures for 31 March 2015 have been restated 

as a result of an error discovered during 2016 in the fi nancial 

statements of the KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority at, and for 

the year ended, 31 March 2015.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 

(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in 

terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report fi ndings on the 

reported performance information against predetermined 

objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual 

performance report, compliance with legislation and internal 

control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable 

fi ndings as described under each subheading but not to gather 

evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, 

I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness 

and reliability of the reported performance information for 

programme 3 - licencing and administration on pages 21 to 

22, programme 4 - compliance and enforcement on pages 22 

to 22 and programme 5 - social responsibility on pages 23 to 

23 presented in the annual performance report of the entity 

for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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11. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 

principles and whether the reported performance was consistent 

with the planned programmes. I further performed tests to 

determine whether indicators and targets were well defi ned, 

verifi able, specifi c, measurable, time bound and relevant, as 

required by the National Treasury’s Framework for Managing 

Programme Performance Information (FMРРI).

12. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information 

to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

13. I did not identify any material fi ndings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information for the three 

selected programmes.

ADDITIONAL MATTER
14. Although I identifi ed no material fi ndings on the usefulness 

and reliability of the reported performance information for the 

selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matter:

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS
15. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 18 to 23 for 

information on the achievement of the planned targets for 

the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 
16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had 

complied with applicable legislation regarding fi nancial matters, 

fi nancial management and other related matters.

I did not identify any material instances of non-compliance with 

specifi c matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice 

issued in terms of the PAA.

INTERNAL CONTROL
17. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the fi nancial 

statements, annual performance report and compliance with 

legislation. I did not identify any signifi cant defi ciencies in 

internal control.

Pietermaritzburg

31 July 2016
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The members are required by the Public Finance Management 

Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records 

and are responsible for the content and integrity of the fi nancial 

statements and related fi nancial information included in this 

report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the 

fi nancial statements fairly present the state of aff airs of the entity 

as at the end of the period and the results of its operations and 

cash fl ows for the period then ended. The external auditors are 

engaged to express an independent opinion on the fi nancial 

statements and were given unrestricted access to all fi nancial 

records and related data.

The fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 

including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by 

the Accounting Standards Board.

The fi nancial statements are based upon appropriate accounting 

policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and 

prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible 

for the system of internal fi nancial control established by the entity 

and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control 

environment. To enable the members to meet these responsibilities, 

the members sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing 

the risk of error or defi cit in a cost eff ective manner. The standards 

include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly 

defi ned framework, eff ective accounting procedures and adequate 

segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 

controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees 

are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring 

the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 

circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in 

the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring 

all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk 

cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it 

by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and 

ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 

procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and 

explanations given by management that the system of internal 

control provides reasonable assurance that the fi nancial records 

may be relied on for the preparation of the fi nancial statements. 

However, any system of internal fi nancial control can provide 

only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material 

misstatement or defi cit.

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash fl ow forecast for 

the year to 31 March 2017 and, in the light of this review and the 

current fi nancial position, they are satisfi ed that the entity has 

or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational 

existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is substantially dependent on the Economic Development 

Tourism and Environmental Aff airs for continued funding of 

operations. The fi nancial statements are prepared on the basis that 

the entity is a going concern and that the Provincial Treasury has 

neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially 

the scale of the entity. The external auditors are responsible for 

independently reviewing and reporting on the entity’s fi nancial 

statements. Although the entity generates revenue in the form of 

license fees, such revenue is wholly transferred to the Department 

of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Aff airs.

The fi nancial statements set out on pages 39 to 61, which have 

been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by 

the members on 31 May 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

 

Adv B J Buthelezi

Chairperson

MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
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Annual Financial Statements ...continued

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2016.

1. INCORPORATION
The entity was incorporated on 01 August 2012 and obtained its certifi cate to commence business on the same day. The KwaZulu-Natal 

Liqour Authority went into operation on 01 November 2012.

2. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
MAIN BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
» Manage and implement eff ective and effi  cient liquor administrative processes in terms of the receiving and processing of liquor applications.

» To raise awareness and provide education on liquor issues

» To implement enforcement and compliance with the prescripts of the applicable liquor legislation

» Facilitate entry of the new entrants into liquor industry

3. GOING CONCERN
Financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to going concern. This basis presumes that the 

funds will be available to fi nance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations 

and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The members are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the fi nancial year.

5. BOARD MEMBERS
The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

MEMBERS’ REPORT

BOARD MEMBERS DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT DATE OF RESIGNATION
Adv. B.J. Buthelezi Chairperson 01/05/2015
Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) Deputy Chairperson 01/02/2013
Ms. S. Pillay (Sulosh) Board Member 01/02/2013
Mr. T. Zulu Audit and Risk Committee Member 09/05/2014
Mr. S. Gumede Human Resources Committee Member 01/12/2014
Brig. A.R. Harry Board Member 01/02/2013
Prof. Ndabandaba Board Member 01/05/2015 13/08/2015
Mrs. C.N. Khumalo Board Member 01/05/2015
Ms. C. Coetzee Audit and Risk Committee Member 29/04/2015

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
Mr. E.M. Mashile Chief Executive Offi  cer 01/06/2015
Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Chief Financial Offi  cer 01/08/2012
Ms. B.G. Shabalala Executive Manager 01/04/2012
Mr. S. Manelli Executive Manager 01/04/2012
Mr. M. Tsautse Executive Manager 01/09/2015
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2016
R

Notes 2015
R

  
Assets

Current Assets

Prepayments 4 181 760 452 932

Receivables from exchange transactions 5 85 253 85 253

Cash and cash equivalents 6 13 424 423 13 471 847

13 691 436 14 010 032

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 2 2 637 697 2 709 912

Intangible assets 3 704 103 690 676

3 341 800 3 400 588

Total Assets 17 033 236 17 410 620

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 7 168 339 293

Unspent conditional grants and receipts  8 - 2 000 000

Provisions 9 1 808 202 1 533 339

Payables from exchange transactions 10 1 793 866 1 528 018

Transfers payable (non-exchange) 11 592 800 840 217

4 363 207 5 901 867

Total Liabilities 4 363 207 5 901 867

Net Assets 12 670 029 11 508 753

Accumulated surplus 12 670 029 11 508 753

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at 31 March 2016
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2016
R

Notes 2015
R

  
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services 34 320 9 200

Discount received 78 294 -

Interest received - investment 20 010 7 805

Total revenue from exchange transactions 132 624 17 005

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 12 72 008 000 75 281 994

Total revenue 72 140 624 75 298 999

Expenditure

Employee related costs 14 (36 466 513) (34 064 605)

Administration (435 537) (413 793)

Depreciation and amortisation (2 162 516) (2 559 661)

Finance costs 15 (10 639) (2 930)

Board & Executive Member's remuneration (7 200 034) (4 973 652)

Repairs and maintenance (69 023) (35 937)

General Expenses 13 (24 627 282) (22 884 588)

Total expenditure (70 971 544) (64 935 166)

Operating surplus 1 169 080 10 363 833

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities (7 804) (64 851)

Surplus for the year 1 161 276 10 298 982

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual Financial Statements ...continued



KZN LIQUOR AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2015  2016 43

Accumulated
surplus

R

Total net
assets

R

  
Balance at 01 April 2014 1 209 771 1 209 771

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 10 298 982 10 298 982

Total changes 10 298 982 10 298 982

Balance at 01 April 2015 11 508 753 11 508 753

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 1 161 276 1 161 276

Total changes 1 161 276 1 161 276

Balance at 31 March 2016 12 670 029 12 670 029

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2016
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2016
R

Notes 2015
R

  
Cash fl ows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants 70 008 000 77 281 994

Interest income 20 010 7 805

70 028 010 77 289 799

Payments

Employee costs (43 666 547) (38 808 909)

Suppliers (24 444 117) (23 718 998)

Finance Costs (10 639) (2 930)

 (68 121 303) (62 530 837)

Net cash fl ows from operating activities 17 1 906 707 14 758 962

Cash fl ows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (1 274 361) (625 581)

Purchase of other intangible assets 3 (837 177) (999 833)

Net cash fl ows from investing activities (2 111 538) (1 625 414)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities

Finance lease payments 157 407 (80 631)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (47 424) 13 052 917

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13 471 847 418 930

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 13 424 423 13 471 847

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual Financial Statements ...continued
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. PRESENTATION OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 

issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with 

Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These fi nancial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis 

of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention 

as the basis of measurement, unless specifi ed otherwise. They are 

presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the signifi cant accounting policies, which have 

been consistently applied in the preparation of these fi nancial 

statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS 
AND SOURCES OF 
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
In preparing the fi nancial statements, management is required 

to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the amounts 

represented in the fi nancial statements and related disclosures. 

Use of available information and the application of judgement 

is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the 

future could diff er from these estimates which may be material 

to the fi nancial statements. Signifi cant judgements include: leave 

provisions, useful lives and depreciation methods and asset 

impairment. Notes relating to the subject are included under the 

aff ected areas of the fi nancial statements.

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that 

are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, 

rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected 

to be used during more than one reporting period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 

as an asset when:

» it is probable that future economic benefi ts or service potential 

associated with the item will fl ow to the entity; and

» the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase 

price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 

manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates 

are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, 

its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in 

exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination 

of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially 

measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value 

was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of 

the asset(s) given up.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the 

item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included 

in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is 

obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation 

arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes 

other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, 

plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line 

basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have 

been assessed as follows:

ITEM   AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Furniture and fi xtures 2-6 years

Motor vehicles  5years

IT equipment  3years

Computer software  2years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of 

each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. If the 

expectations diff er from previous estimates, the change is accounted 

for as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 

cost that is signifi cant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately.
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Annual Financial Statements ...continued

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT ...continued

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or 

defi cit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when 

the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefi ts or service potential expected from the use or disposal 

of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or defi cit 

when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the 

derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined as the diff erence between the net disposal proceeds, 

if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
An asset is identifi able if it either:

» is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from 

an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, identifi able 

assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to 

do so; or

» arises from binding arrangements (including rights from 

contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or 

separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers 

similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in 

the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

» it is probable that the expected future economic benefi ts or 

service potential that are attributable to the asset will fl ow to 

the entity; and

» the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic 

benefi ts or service potential using reasonable and supportable

assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set 

of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange 

transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured

at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal 

project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the 

development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:

» it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be 

available for use or sale.

» there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

» there is an ability to use or sell it.

» it will generate probable future economic benefi ts or service potential.

» there are available technical, fi nancial and other resources to 

complete the development and to use or sell the asset.

» the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development 

can be measured reliably.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible 

assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a fi nite useful 

life after it was classifi ed as indefi nite is an indicator that the asset 

may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and 

the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on 

a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

ITEM    USEFUL LIFE

Computer software   2 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:

» on disposal; or

» when no future economic benefi ts or service potential are 

expected from its use or disposal.

1.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a fi nancial instrument will 

cause a fi nancial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 

an obligation.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a fi nancial instrument will 

cause a fi nancial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 

an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a 

fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows 

of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CLASSIFICATION

Financial instruments are recognised on the statement of fi nancial 

position when the entity becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial instruments include cash 

and bank balances, receivables and payables. These fi nancial 

instruments are generally carried at their estimated fair value, 

which is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or 

a liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in 

an arms length transaction.

FINANCIAL ASSETS:

The entity’s principle fi nancial instruments are cash at bank and 

cash on hand and other receivables.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

The entity’s principle liabilities are trade and other payables.

INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

The entity classifi es fi nancila instruments, or their components 

parts, on initial recognition as a fi nancial asset, a fi nancial liability 

or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the 

contractual agreement. Financial instruments are measured initially 

at fair value costs when the entity is a party to the contractual 

arrangement. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments 

are measured as set below:

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade and other receivables are stated at nominal value as reduced 

by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The entity measures a fi nancial asset and fi nancial liability initially 

at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value].

PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade and other payables are measured at their nominal value. The 

carrying amount of these payables approximates fair value due to 

the short period to maturity of these instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value. The carrying 

amount approximates fair value due to the short period to maturity. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and cash on hand.

1.5 LEASES
A lease is classifi ed as a fi nance lease if it transfers substantially all 

the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classifi ed 

as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity 

assesses the classifi cation of each element separately.

FINANCE LEASES  LESSEE

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the 

statement of fi nancial position at amounts equal to the fair value 

of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 

lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included 

in the statement of fi nancial position as a fi nance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the 

minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the fi nance 

charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The fi nance charge 

is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce 

a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they 

are incurred.

OPERATING LEASES  LESSEE

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. The diff erence between the 

amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments 

are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.6 IMPAIRMENT OF 
NONCASHGENERATING ASSETS
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with 

the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When 

an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted 

by a profi t-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefi ts or service 

potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of 

the loss of the asset’s future economic benefi ts or service potential 

through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in 

the statement of fi nancial position after deducting any accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the 

disposal of an asset, excluding fi nance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the 

depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
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1.6 IMPAIRMENT OF NONCASH
GENERATING ASSETS  ...continued

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale 

of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, 

willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating 

asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used 

by the entity; or

(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be 

obtained from the asset by the entity.

IDENTIFICATION

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds 

its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any 

indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If 

any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable 

service amount of the asset.

1.7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee benefi ts are all forms of consideration given by an entity 

in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Termination benefi ts are employee benefi ts payable as a result 

of either:

» an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment 

before the normal retirement date; or

» an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in 

exchange for those benefi ts.

Other long-term employee benefi ts are employee benefi ts (other 

than post-employment benefi ts and termination benefi ts) that 

are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of 

the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefi ts are employee benefi ts that are not 

conditional on future employment.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an 

entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, 

published policies or a suffi  ciently specifi c current statement, 

the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain 

responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid 

expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge  

those responsibilities.

SHORTTERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefi ts are employee benefi ts (other than 

termination benefi ts) that are due to be settled within twelve 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render 

the related service.

Short-term employee benefi ts include items such as:

» wages, salaries and social security contributions;

» short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave 

and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences 

is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the 

reporting period in which the employees render the related 

employee service;

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a 

reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount 

of short-term employee benefi ts expected to be paid in exchange 

for that service:

» as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount 

already paid, and

» as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the 

inclusion of the benefi ts in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as 

an expense as the employees render services that increase their 

entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when 

the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of 

accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount 

that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement 

that has accumulated at the reporting date.

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Post-employment benefi ts are employee benefi ts (other than 

termination benefi ts) which are payable after the completion 

of employment.

Post-employment benefi t plans are formal or informal arrangements 

under which an entity provides post-employment benefi ts for one 

or more employees.

Multi-employer plans are defi ned contribution plans (other 

than state plans and composite social security programmes) or 

defi ned benefi t plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets 

contributed by various entities that are not under common control 

and use those assets to provide benefi ts to employees of more 

than one entity, on the basis that contribution and benefi t levels 

are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that 

employs the employees concerned.
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1.8 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:

» the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

» it is probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic 

benefi ts or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation; and

» a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure 

expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 

reporting date.

Where the eff ect of time value of money is material, the amount 

of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 

to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that refl ects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to 

the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision 

is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 

is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that 

reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 

reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised 

for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 

refl ect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no 

longer probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic 

benefi ts or service potential will be required, to settle th obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision 

increases in each period to refl ect the passage of time. This increase 

is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision 

was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating defi cits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation 

(net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured 

as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

» has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating 

unit concerned;

- the principal locations aff ected;

- the location, function, and approximate number of employees 

who will be compensated for services being terminated;

- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

- when the plan will be implemented; and

» has raised a valid expectation in those aff ected that it will carry 

out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or 

announcing its main features to those aff ected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures 

arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:

» necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and

» not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of 

an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or transfer, 

that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in 

entity combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently 

measured at the higher of:

» the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

» the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. 

Contingencies are disclosed in the note.

A fi nancial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer 

to make specifi ed payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it 

incurs because a specifi ed debtor fails to make payment when 

due in accordance with the original or modifi ed terms of a debt 

instrument.

Loan commitment is a fi rm commitment to provide credit under 

pre-specifi ed terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for fi nancial guarantees and loan 

commitments when it is probable that an outfl ow of resources 

embodying economic benefi ts and service potential will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 

obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outfl ow of resources is probable in 

relation to fi nancial guarantees requires judgement. Indications 

that an outfl ow of resources may be probable are:

» fi nancial diffi  culty of the debtor;

» defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by 

the debtor;

» breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it 

being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of 

the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
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1.8 PROVISIONS AND 
CONTINGENCIES  ...continued

» a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest 

rates, infl ation and unemployment) that impact on the ability 

of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a fi nancial guarantee 

and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is considered 

in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle 

the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the 

entity considers that an outfl ow of economic resources is probable, 

an entity recognises the obligation at the higher of:

» the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;and

» the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, 

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the 

Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.9 REVENUE FROM 
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Revenue is the gross infl ow of economic benefi ts or service 

potential during the reporting period when those infl ows result in an 

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions 

from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives 

assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 

approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services 

or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, 

or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 

arm’s length transaction.

1.10 REVENUE FROM 
NONEXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Revenue comprises gross infl ows of economic benefi ts or service 

potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an 

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions 

from owners.

Income received from conditional grants, donations and subsidies is 

recognised in so far as the entity has complied with all of the criteria, 

conditions or obligations embodied in the applicable agreement. In so 

far as the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, a liability 

is recognised and should the funds committed for future use, that such 

funds be repaid. Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that 

specify that the future economic benefi ts or service potential embodied 

in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specifi ed 

or future economic benefi ts or service potential must be returned to 

the transferor.

In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value 

from another entity without directly giving approximately equal 

value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly 

receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct 

the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do 

not specify that future economic benefi ts or service potential is 

required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specifi ed.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, 

or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred 

asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

1.11 INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using 

the eff ective interest method.

1.12 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Where necessary, comparative fi gures have been reclassifi ed/or 

restated in terms of GRAP 3.

1.13 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE
Unauthorised expenditure means:

» overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and

» expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, 

in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose 

of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised 

as an expense in the statement of fi nancial performance in the 

period that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is 

classifi ed in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 

where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in 

the statement of fi nancial performance.

1.14 FRUITLESS AND 
WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain 

and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 

recognised as an expense in the statement of fi nancial performance 

in the period that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure 
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is classifi ed in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 

where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in 

the statement of fi nancial performance.

1.15 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Irregular expenditure as defi ned in section 1 of the PFMA is 

expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 

contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement 

of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or

(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any 

regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures 

in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was 

issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the 

following (eff ective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identifi ed during the 

current fi nancial and which was condoned before year end and/

or before fi nalisation of the fi nancial statements must also be 

recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such 

an instance, no further action is also required with the exception 

of updating the note to the fi nancial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identifi ed during the 

current fi nancial year and for which condonement is being awaited 

at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. 

No further action is required with the exception of updating the 

note to the fi nancial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous fi nancial 

year and is only condoned in the following fi nancial year, the 

register and the disclosure note to the fi nancial statements must 

be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identifi ed during 

the current fi nancial year and which was not condoned by the 

National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded 

appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 

irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account 

must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps 

must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person 

concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting offi  cer or 

accounting authority may write off  the amount as debt impairment 

and disclose such in the relevant note to the fi nancial statements. 

The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. 

If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person 

is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against 

the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such 

in the note to the fi nancial statements and updated accordingly 

in the irregular expenditure register.

1.16 BUDGET INFORMATION
Entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of 

appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is 

given eff ect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose fi nancial reporting by entity shall provide 

information on whether resources were obtained and used in 

accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by 

economic classifi cation linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fi scal period from 2015/04/01 

to 2016/03/31.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities 

approved budgets under its control.

The fi nancial statements are prepared on accrual basis and 

the budget prepared on cash basis of accounting therefore a 

comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period 

have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget 

and actual amounts.

1.17 RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related to the entity if they have the 

ability to control or exercise signifi cant infl uence over the entity or 

vise versa in making fi nancial and operational decisions or if both 

parties are subject to common control. Management are those 

persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of the entity, including those charged with the governance 

of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where 

they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be 

those family members who may be expected to infl uence, or be 

infl uenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not 

in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
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2016

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

2015

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

  
2.    Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and fi xtures  2 707 700 (1 403 842) 1 303 858 2 671 082 (938 023) 1 733 059

Motor vehicles  394 049 (236 429) 157 620 394 049 (157 619) 236 430

Offi  ce equipment  460 880 (326 704) 134 176 460 880 (224 651) 236 229

IT equipment  2 928 766 (2 265 301) 663 465 1 937 697 (1 696 833) 240 864

Cellphones  417 542 (249 203) 168 339 190 566 (190 035) 531

Security Equipment   262 799 (52 560) 210 239 262 799 - 262 799

Total  7 171 736 (4 534 039) 2 637 697 5 917 073 (3 207 161) 2 709 912

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

  
Reconciliation of property, 
plant and equipment - 2015

Furniture and fi xtures 1 915 985 250 143 - (433 069) 1 733 059

Motor vehicles    315 239 - - (78 809) 236 430

Offi  ce equipment  353 983 8 250 (14 522) (111 482) 236 229

IT equipment  895 248 104 389 (48 968) (709 805) 240 864

Cellphones 73 832 - (1 359) (71 942) 531

Security Equipment - 262 799 - - 262 799

3 554 287 625 581 (64 849) (1 405 107) 2 709 912

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

  
Reconciliation of property, 
plant and equipment - 2016

Furniture and fi xtures 1 733 059 36 618 - (465 819) 1 303 858

Motor vehicles 236 430 - - (78 810) 157 620

Offi  ce equipment 236 229 - - (102 053) 134 176

IT equipment 240 864 1 010 767 (7 810) (580 356) 663 465

Cellphones 531 226 976 - (59 168) 168 339

Security Equipment 262 799 - - (52 560) 210 239

2 709 912 1 274 361 (7 810) (1 338 766) 2 637 697

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual Financial Statements ...continued
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2016

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

2015

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying 
value

  
3.    Intangible assets

Computer software 3 947 289 (3 243 186) 704 103 3 110 111 (2 419 435) 690 676

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

  
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

Computer software 845 397 999 833 (1 154 554) 690 676

Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

  
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016

Computer software 690 676 837 177 (823 750) 704 103

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2016
R

2015
R

  
4.    Prepayments

Prepayments relate to rent, subscription and licence fees paid in advance to diff erent service providers.

Rent  - 363 058

Licences 181 760 89 874

181 760 452 932

5.    Receivables from exchange transactions

Staff  debtors 4 015 4 015

Deposits 81 238 81 238

85 253 85 253

6.    Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 8 757 3 493

Bank balances 13 415 666 13 468 354

13 424 423 13 471 847
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Opening
balance

Additions Total

  
Reconciliation of provisions - 2015

Leave provision 1 303 991 229 348 1 533 339

Provision for leave is calculated at a current salary rate multiplied by a number of available leave days due to employees at the reporting date.

Opening
balance

Additions Total

  
9.    Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2016

Leave provision 1 533 339 274 863 1 808 202

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual Financial Statements ...continued

2016
R

2015
R

  
7.    Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 125 058 293

- in second to fi fth year inclusive 55 782 -

180 840 293

less: future fi nance charges (12 501) -

Present value of minimum lease payments 168 339 293

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 113 942 290

- in second to fi fth year inclusive 54 397 -

168 339 290

8.    Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Information technology system

Balance at the beginning of the year 2 000 000 -

Receipts during the year  - 2 000 000

Amount utilised during the year (2 000 000) -

Balance at end of the year  - 2 000 000

2016
R

2015
R

  
10. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 1 672 584 1 334 426

Accrued bonus 121 282 103 050

Operating lease payables  - 90 542

1 793 866 1 528 018
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2016
R

2015
R

  
11. Transfers payable (non-exchange)

Transfers payable - DEDT 592 800 840 217

12. Government grants and subsidies

Recognised as income

Unconditional grant 72 008 000 75 281 994

13. General expenses

Advertising 915 413 340 292

Assets expensed 76 429 42 134

Attendance fees 977 683 956 565

Auditors remuneration 1 166 680 1 278 006

Bank charges 48 626 31 724

Catering 47 933 56 339

Cleaning 312 484 99 789

Computer expenses  - 25 524

Consulting and professional fees 2 656 702 2 504 725

Electricity 361 533 336 193

Hire 93 666 69 300

IT expenses 359 274 294 807

Insurance 53 458 99 482

Lease rentals on operating leases 4 423 545 3 821 426

Loss of cash  - 2 289

Marketing 732 730 743 585

Offi  ce set-up cost 935 736 942 700

Placement fees 1 527 97 010

Postage and courier 250 243 2 071 568

Printing and stationery 1 351 448 1 138 301

Security 1 319 100 1 237 023

Software expenses 118 889 112 264

Special projects 110 149 -

Staff  relocation  - 15 580

Staff  welfare 101 719 92 667

Subscriptions and membership fees 1 175 479 1 007 695

Telephone and fax 883 696 665 841

Training 1 086 047 860 966

Travel - local 4 091 108 3 005 788

Venue expenses 975 985 935 005

24 627 282 22 884 588

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Annual Financial Statements ...continued

2016
R

2015
R

  
14. Employee related costs

Basic 34 924 365 33 103 636

Bonus 451 911 103 050

UIF 382 460 330 755

SDL 432 914 297 816

Leave pay provision charge 274 863 229 348

36 466 513 34 064 605

15. Finance costs

Finance leases 10 639 2 930

16. Auditors' remuneration

Fees (included in the general expenditure above) 1 166 680 1 278 006

17. Cash generated from operations

Surplus 1 161 276 10 298 982

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 2 162 516 2 559 661

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities 7 804 64 851

Finance costs - Finance leases 10 639 -

Movements in provisions 274 863 229 348

Changes in working capital:

Receivables from exchange transactions  - (21 929)

Prepayments 271 172 (376 966)

Payables from exchange transactions 265 854 (817 052)

Taxes and transfers payable (non exchange)  (247 417) 822 067

Unspent conditional grants and receipts (2 000 000) 2 000 000

1 906 707 14 758 962
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2016
R

2015
R

  
18. Commitments

Operational expenditure

» Approved and contracted 5 932 020 6 766 807

» Approved and not contracted  - -

5 932 020 6 766 807

Capital expenditure

» Approved and contracted: Property, plant and equipment 937 260 1 508 188

» Approved but not yet contracted: Property, plant and equipment  - -

937 260 1 508 188

Approved operational expenditure and capital commitments

Total commitments 6 869 280 8 274 995

Operating leases

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 3 327 660 1 764 147

- in second to fi fth year inclusive 16 194 393 -

19 522 053 1 764 147

The KwaZulu Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Delta Property Fund Limited eff ective 
01 April 2016. The lease period will end 31 March 2021. The monthly payment is R 207 480 with an 
escalation of 8%

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 62 073 235 149

- in second to fi fth year inclusive  - 62 073

- later than fi ve years  - -

62 073 297 222

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Zevoli Properties for a period of 22 
months, eff ective 01 July 2014. The remaining period for the lease is 3 months ending 30 June 
2016. The lease payment is R18 810 per month with an annual escalation clause of 10%.

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 451 440 171 000

- in second to fi fth year inclusive 206 910 -

- later than fi ve years  - -

658 350 171 000

The KwaZulu- Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Sarosma Trust for a period of 2 year, 
eff ective 01 September 2015. The remaining period for the lease is 17 months ending 31 August 
2017. The lease payment is R34 200 per month with an annual escalation of 10%.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2016
R

2015
R

  
19. Related parties

The entity is wholly dependent on the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Aff airs - KZN for continued funding of operations.

Related party balances

Transfers payable (non - exchange)

Transfers payable - Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Aff airs - KZN 592 800 840 217

Amounts included in current liabilities

Unspent conditional grants - Information technology system  - 2 000 000

Related party transactions

Government grants received

Unconditional grant 72 008 000 75 281 994

Conditional grant  - -

The following Prior Year Errors were identifi ed and have now been corrected in the comparative 
fi nancial year. There was an overstatement of Revenue from Exchange Transactions as a result of 
the inclusion of monies received from the renewal/issuing of License Fees and permits

There was an overstatement of Transfer Payments due to the the payment of monies received from 
the renewal/issuing of License Fees and permits to the Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism (DEDT)

There was an overstatement of General Expenses due to the inclusion of Bank Charges on the 
entity specifi c Revenue account. The correction of the error (s) resulted in changes as follows;

Amount Transferred to EDTEA 26 059 891 26 433 452

Revenue - licence fees 26 367 458 26 710 239

Bank Charges - licence fees (307 567) (276 787)

During the period under review the entity occupied offi  ces on a temporary basis on the premises 
belonging to Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Aff airs - KZN.
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Basic Salary Medical Aid Pension Fund Travel
Allowance

Other Total

  
2015

Mrs C N Khumalo 199 686 8 064 13 781 16 000 125 537 363 068

Mr E M Mashile 437 527 34 017 95 780 196 704 280 312 1 044 340

Mr B B Mbanjwa 492 166 18 705 95 780 78 000 242 053 926 704

Ms B G Shabalala  476 580 - 95 780 99 996 239 417 911 773

Mr S Manelli  495 132 - 95 780 72 000 242 369 905 281

2 101 091 60 786 396 901 462 700 1 129 688 4 151 166

Members’ fees Total

  
2015

Adv. L Makatini 349 063 349 063

Ms S Pillay (Silochini) 272 223 272 223

Ms S Pillay (Sulosh) 159 722 159 722

Mr T Zulu 28 237 28 237

Mr S Gumede 13 241 13 241

822 486 822 486

Basic 
Salary

Medical 
Aid

Pension 
Fund

Travel
Allowance

Other Total

  
20. Board and executive 

members remuneration

Executive

2016

Mr E M Mashile 585 889 39 903 143 912 274 176 423 060 1 466 940

Mr B B Mbanjwa 498 866 23 199 101 520 78 000 263 435 965 020

Ms B G Shabalala  497 867 - 101 520 99 996 265 637 965 020

Mr S Manelli  519 703 - 101 520 72 000 271 798 965 021

Mr M Tsautse  281 125 - 59 125 59 500 152 086 551 836

2 383 450 63 102 507 597 583 672 1 376 016 4 913 837

Members’ 
fees

Total

  
Non-executive

2016

Adv B J Buthelezi 752 546 752 546

Adv L Makatini (backpay, resigned December 2014) 28 944 28 944

Ms S Pillay (Silochini) 936 363 936 363

Ms S Pillay (Sulosh) 429 471 429 471

Mr T Zulu 43 510 43 510

Prof Ndabandaba 95 364 95 364

2 286 198 2 286 198
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annual Financial Statements ...continued

2016
R

2015
R

  
21. Risk management

Financial risk management
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the organisation may not be able to meet its fi nancial obligations as 
they fall due. The entity's risk is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The 
current ratio is 2.37:1 therefore the entity will be more capable to pay its current obligations and 
will continue operations at desired levels.

Credit risk
The entity does not have any customers and trade debtors. Staff  loans are the only fi nancial asset 
exposed to credit risk. Credit risk in respect of staff  loans is managed by the entity by recovering the 
debt from employees salary. Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited to due to the 
nature of the entity’s business and its reliance on government grant as the main source of funding.

Market risk
Interest rate risk
Market risk refers to the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to moves inmarket 
factors. The entity is not exposed to any long term loans. As the entity has no signifi cant interest-
bearing liabilities, the entity’s income and operating cash fl ows are substantially independent of 
changes in market interest rates. Staff  loans bear no interest.

Capital management
The entity maintains suffi  cient and equal levels of working capital, current assets and current 
liabilities. This helps the entity to meet its expense obligation while also maintaining suffi  cient 
cashfl ow and is primarily related to short term fi nance decisions. The entity is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements.

Cash and cash equivalents 13 424 423 13 471 847

Prepayments 181 760 452 932

13 606 183 13 924 779
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for the year ended 31 March 2016

At fair value Total

  
2015

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 85 253 85 253

Cash and cash equivalents 13 471 847 13 471 847

Prepayments 452 933 452 933

14 010 033 14 010 033

At fair value At amortised cost Total

  
Financial liabilities

Other fi nancial liabilities  - 293 293

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions  1 528 019 - 1 528 019

Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange)   840 217 - 840 217

Unspent conditional grants and receipts  2 000 000 - 2 000 000

4 368 236 293 4 368 529

At fair value Total

  
22. Financial instruments disclosure

Categories of fi nancial instruments

2016

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 85 253 85 253

Cash and cash equivalents 13 424 423 13 424 423

Prepayments 181 760 181 760

13 691 436 13 691 436

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 1 793 867 1 793 867

Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange) 592 800 592 800

2 386 667 2 386 667

2016
R

2015
R

  
23. Events after the reporting date

At the reporting date, management was not aware of any post reporting events.

24. Unauthorised expenditure
No unauthorised expenditure has been identifi ed.

25. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
No wasteful expenditure was identifi ed during the 2016 Financial Year.

26. Irregular expenditure
No instances of irregular expenditure were identifi ed during the reporting period.
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